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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™ in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Ruies made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judaments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liqguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud .or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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. Evaiuai_:e the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertdinty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowiledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and In evaluating the results of our worlk; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order,2016 (“The Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies act,2013,we give
in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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)

d)

f)

g)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A”".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements -~ Refer Note __ to the financial statements.

ii.  The Cempany has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts - Refer Note __ to the Financial Statements.

i, There has been no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417wW

ob< Ak Qo A

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.1008%92

Ahmedabad
May 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Lifestyle
Brands Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internail Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controis over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financlal controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting

of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. -
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W

ol St b

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership N¢, 100892

Ahmedabad
May 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE 'B° TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited of even date)

(i) (@) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. We are informed that no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not hold any immovable properties and thus disclosure under clause (i)-{c) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{ii) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material having regard to the size of the Company, and the same have been properly
dealt with in the books of account,

(iii) The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Consequently, requirements of clause (iii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any investment covered
under section 185 of the Act. However, the Company has advanced loans or given guarantees or provided
security or made investments covered under section 186 of the Act. We are of the opinion that provisions
of section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board
or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

{vi) To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s product. Consequently, requirement
of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(vii}(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) Following amounts have not been deposited as on March 31, 2019 on account of any

dispute:
Nature of the Statute Nature of the dues Amount Rs. Period to which the rorum where matter is
ameount relates Pending
Sales Tax Act Sales Tax 9,96,490 1598-99 High Court
2,36,186 2000-01 Deputy Commissioner
2,549 2001-02 Deputy Commissioner
24,275,111 2001-05 High Court
1,4(,000 2002-03 Appellate Tribunal
6,24,751 2005-06 Additional Commissicner
73,58,223 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner
5,33,922 2006-07 Appellate Tribunal
8,69,603 2007-08 Deputy Commissioner
95,410,759 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner
22,21,000 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner
3,55,46,304 2009-10 Joint Commissioner Appeal
3,35,89,359 2010-11 Joint Commissioner Appeal
2,58,74,838 2010-11 Deputy Commissioner
36,92,595 2011-12 Ceputy Commissioner
2,62,05,814 2012-13 Appeliate Tribunal
1,59,36,919 2012-13 Assistant Commissioner
91,93,217 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner
10,71,444 2013-14 Assistant Commissioner
2,56,09,423 2013-14 Deputy Cornmissigner
41,97,094 | 2013-14 to 2015-16 High Court
24,61,531 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner
Central Excise Act Excise Duty 1,00,000 2006-07 CESTAT
1,58,000 2006-07 Commissioner of Central Excise
Textile Committee Textile Committee Cess 10,094,000 3006-07 CESTAT
'Employee Provident Fund Provident Fund 52,92,000 January 2012-March 2015 EPF Tribunal
Customs Act Basic Custom Duty 11,04,60,721 2013-18 Commissicner of Customs
Income Tax Act Income Tax 4,86,51,103 2015-16 Appeliate Tribunal

Tax Deducted at Saurce

3,67,14,030

2010-11 to 2014-15

Comimissioner
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(vifi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

{ix) To the best of our knowledge and helief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer. However, the
term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by the Company for the purpose for which
they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and expianations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the vear,

(xi) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and exptanations given to us,
no managerial remuneration has been paid/provided.

(xii)The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicabie.

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements etc. as reguired by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv} To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fuily or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(xv)To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him.

Xxvi) According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417wW

el Y N

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Ahmedabad
May 16, 2019



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Amount in Rs.

SETS

I. Non-current assets

(n) Property, plant and equipiment 5 2.72.94,04 387 2,70,34,54 BBR
{b} Capital work-in-progress 5 5.85,283 24,33,400
(¢} Intangible assets 6 16,00,82,755 26,26,90,066
{d} Intazpible assets under development [ 3.".'7,43.5'01 -
{e) Fmancial assets
(i} investments 7 §,50,000 1,50,000
(ié} Loans 7 17,35,196 3441,137
(iti) Other financizl assets 7 1,90,79,78,261 1,81,60,62,650
(fy Deferred 1ax assets {net) 25 1,93,46,92,959 2,00,33,58,581
(2} Other non-current assels H 3,32,51.409 4,80,95952
Toial non-current assets 6,30,55,44,251 6,84.05,86,674
IL.Current assets
{a} Inventories 92 6,68,80,42.573 5,32,83,82,009
{h} Financial asseis
(i) Trade receivables T 7.42,072,16,321 0,24,34.90,610
(ii} Cash and cash cquivalents 7 3,78,65,582 2,80.45,008
(iii} Bank balance other than {ii} 2bove 7 4,20,04,856 15,97,81,210
(iv) Loans 7 3.i2,97.341 29433418
(¥) Others financial assets 7 24,45,05,263 25,03,23,124
{c) Current 12x assets {net) 10 15,64,78.811 10,12,56,030
(d) Other current assets 8 3,16,62,69,295 3,01,29,17.605
Taotal current assets 17,78,82,79,942 15,1541,29,706
Total Assets 24,59.38.24,193 21,9947,16.380
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity share capital 11 91,27.87.236% 81,27,87,230
(b) Other equity 12 7,50,55,45,590 6,67,55,21,76¢
Todal equity 8.41,83,32,820 7.:48,83,08,991
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 ’ 67,13,40,060 28,05,66,056
(i) Gther financial liabilities 53,60,37,098 41,73,77,180C
(bY Long-term provisicns i3 1543,66,390 15.55,63,154
1,36,17,43,548 1,35,35,00,3%0
IL.Current [iabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13 4,67,52,13,544 4,01,82,73,086
(ii} Trade payables 13
a) 10tal'oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1.65,13,72.760 28.9227,625
enlerprises
b) lolal‘oulstand.ing dues of credilors other than ticro 7,86,37.78,269 7,11,76.84,534
enterprises and small enterprises
(1ii) Other financial lizbilities 13 75,30,73,174 1,41,53,09.556
(b) Other current liabilities 13 36,27,28,192 20,33,73,719
(c} Short-ierm provisions 15 16,758,884 10,90,32,479
Total current liabilities 12
14,81,37.47.825 13,15,29.00,99%
Total Equity and Liabilities 24.59.38.24.193 21,99.47.16,380
Significant Accounting Policics 3
The seconpanying notes.ase an intepral part of these financial statements
As per ovr report of even date
For Saraly 8. Engincer & Co.
Chartered Accountants Far and or: behalf of the board of directors of
Firnr's Repistration No. 110417 Aryind Lifestyle Brands Limited
O/‘r\ﬂ/ﬂ\ g L‘”T | \3,\/
' - %W
CA. Chokshi Shrevas B, Suresh Jayaraman Kamal Singal ~
Patiner Managing Director &CEQ Director
Memberskip No. 160892 (DIN .03033110) (DIN-02524196)
Place.; Ahmedabad Place : Alunedabad Flace : Ahmedabad

Date: 16th May,2019 Dare : 16th May,2019

Date 1 16t May, 2019 w

Pranod Kiv f Vijay Kiwedr B.S,
ChigfFinancial Officer Company Secretary
Place - Ahmedabad Place 1 Aluncdabad
Date ¢ 16th May,2619 Date : 16th May,2019
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Amouzt in Rs,

Income

Membership No. 100892
Place ; Almedabad
Pate: 16th May,2019

(DN -030331 :0)
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 16th May,2019

Pramiod
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 16th May,2019

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products i6 34,03,10,31,341 27,30,01,36,930
Sale of Services 16 5,64,27,006 428783875
Qperating Income 16 444922419 41,897,100
Revenue from operations 31,53.23,80,766 27,73,31,7,905
Other income 17 1,74,61,622 3.81,12,204
Total income {J) 31,54,98,42,388 27,77,12,30,109
Expenses
Cost of rims and accessories consumed 18 3,12,95,839 1,78,13,231
Purchase of stock-in-trade 19 16,61,21,20,240 §1,480142 389
Changes in inventories 20 (1,37,85,57,651) 1,38,27,95,834
Employee benefils expense 2t 2.83,15,58,309 2,61,2697.88%
Finance costs 22 £8,38,30,098 67,10,44,788
Depreciation and amostisation expense 23 1,09,77,56,095 1,04,73,83,152
Other expenses 24 11,42,77,07,512 10,66,95,52,598
Total expenses (IT) 31,50,57,18,402 27,89,06,29,880
Profit/{loss) before exceptional items aad tax (I11)=(I-1T} 4,41,31,986 {11,93,99,71)
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(loss) before tax (IIT-IV) 4,41,31,986 (11,93,99,771)
Tax expense
Deferred tax charge / {credit) 28 8,61,42,197 (7,84,90,590
Total tax expense 8.,61,42,197 £7.84,90,5%0)
Profiti{loss) for the period (V-VI} {4,20,18,211) (4,09,09,E81)
Other comprehensive income/(foss)
A, Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent perfods:
Re-measurement gains / {losses) on defined benefit 12 (4.97,65,250) (1,78,34,803}
[ncome tax effect 15 1,73,89,969 62,32,225
{3.23,75,281) {1,16,02,668)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit 5 N
or loss in subsequent periods (A) (3.23,75,281) (1.16,02,68)
B. Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Net gains / (Ioss) on hedging inslruments in a cash flow hedge 12 {2,47,844)
Income tax effect 25 86,507 -
Net ether comprehensive income/(lass) that will be reclassified to profit-
or loss in subsequent periods (B} 1,61.237) _
Tetal otber comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax {A+B) (3,25,36,518) (1,16,02,668)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) fur the year, net of tax (VII+VEH]) {7.4546,729) {5,25,11.849)
Earning per equity share {nominal value per share Rs. 10/~
{March 31, 2018: Rs,10/-)]
Basic 32 (6.52) (£.60)
Diluted 32 {G.52) (.60}
Significant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integsa! part of these [inancial statements
As per our report of cven dale
Far Sorab 8, Engineer & Co, For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Charlered Accountants Arvipd Lifestyle Brands Limited
Fim's Registeation No_ 110417W
M\. (g‘,.‘ o V .
CA. ChokshiShreyas B, Suresh Jayavaman KamnlSiﬁguI ra
Partner Managing Director &CEQ Director

{DIN-02524196}
Place : Ahmedabad
Date ; 16th May,2019

Vijay Kunar S,
Company Secretary
Plaze | Ahmedabad
Date : 16th May,2019
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

312018

ProhGt / (Loss) Before taxation 4,41.31 986 (11,93,99,.772)
Adfustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Drepreciation fAmertizalion 1,09,77,56,095 1,04,73,83,153

interest Income (44,95,394) (2,27,67.358)

Interest and Other Borrowing Cost 8%8,38,30,048 67.10,44,788

Provision for Bad Debis 20345987

Provision for doubttul debts and advances (aet} 51,12,740

Foreign Exchange Difference {60,50,420)

Provision for LitigationDisputes 3,39,50,57% 6,97.02,73%

Fixed Assets written 6fT - 7,09,75.837
(ProfityLoss on Sale of Tangible/Inlangible assets (6.08.160) {15,54.970)
Share based payment expense 45,710,558 4825393

2,00,90,43,358 1,86,51,27,503

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,0531,753,344 1,74,57.27,731
Working Capital Changes:

Chanpes in fvenlories (1,36,05,60,564) {38,09,05,435)

Changes in trade payables 1,50,82,38,870 1,65,23,53,18¢

Changes in other current labilities 9.93,54473 £5,95,79.342}

Changes in other financiat fiabitities (13,11,32,154) 17.92,89.455
Changes in provisions (63,63,185) 2,86,75.639

Changes in foans and advances {1,57.98) (2,60,£7,930)

Changes in tradé receivables {5.17,62,256i5) {3,64,50,6%,980)

Changes in other current asscls {15.40,51,690} 3,01.40.662

Changes in other Financial assets (8.82,44.614) 16,56,518

Changes iz Other Bank Balances 14,77,77,054 26,51,689

Net Changes In Working Caplial {1.19,13,65.403} (2,21,48,05,23%)
Cash Generated from Operations 86,18,09,941 (46.,90,77,504)
Dirget Taxes paid {Net of Income Tax refund) {5,52,22,781} 1,04,35,729
Net Cash from Operating Activilies £0,65.87,160 (45,86,41,773)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Acfivilies

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment/intangible assets {1,10,04,83 481} {£.22.1549.027)
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 441,77,475 1,18;65,058

Changes in Capital Advances 1,57,44,543 (60,16,142)

Intercst Income £5,52,255 2.,10,04,028

Net cash flow from Investing Activities {1,03,40,09,208) (1,19.46.96.083;

C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Provends from Issue of share capital 1,0£,00,00,000 2.49.,99,99.960

Changes in [ang term Borrowings (35,44,07.204) {26,26,08,91})

Changes in short term borrowings 66,29,90.878 £8,19,192

Interest and Giher Borvowing Cost Paid {85,23,67.646) (64,71.19,538)

Net Cash Bow from Financing Activities 25,62,16,028 1,59,84,90,703
Net Encrease/{Decrease} in cash & cash equivalents 2,87,93,950 {5,48,47,155)
LCash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 42,60,198 5,91,07,353
L7ash & Cash equivalent at the end of the persod 33054178 42,60,198

Amgunt in Rs,

“End:

Rupees: ‘Ruqrecs

Cash and cash equivalents-comprise of:

Cash on Hand 47,472 15,946
Balances wilh Banks 1.78,18,110 2.80,29.054
Cash and ¢ash equivalents as per Balance Skeet {Note 7) 3,78,65,582 2,80,45,600

Less: Book Overdraft { Note 13 £) 48.11,404 2,37.84,502
Cashand cash equivatents 3,30,54,178 42,60,198

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalemenls

Bisclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind As 7 on cash flow under Ce Indian Accounting Stantdards} Rules 20E5 { as amended) Amount in Rs.

Borrowings:

Long term borrowings 13  L33T415889  (3544,07,208 93,30,08,683
Shott lerm borrowings fia)  4,0032,7308 656,26.90,87% {60.50420) 4.61.352,13,544
Interest accrned op borrowings 13{c) 14,24,25,85% (8,60,92,224) 11,75,54,676 17,33.88.21¢
Total 5,69,81,14,833 2,24,91,450 (60,50 420) 11,75.54,676 5,83,21,10,530

* The same relales to amount charged in s@atement of profit and loss zeeounts.

Notes:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set ot in Indian Accounting $tandard (End AS 7) statement of cash flows.
2 Purchase of property, plant & equipment / intangible assets inchude movement of capital work-in-progress during the year,

As per our report of even date
For Sorab §, Engineer. & Co.
Charlere] Accountanls

Firm's Registration No. 110417W

thefl: 8-

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Fartner

Membership No. 100892
Tlace - Ahmedabad

Date: 16th May, 2619

A

For and n hrehalf of the board of directors ol
Arvind Lilestyle Brands Limited

b

Kanal Singal
Director
(DIN-02524196)
Place : Alimedabad
Date : 16th May 2019

Suresh Jayaraman
Managing Directer £CEC
{DIN 03033300
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 16th May,2619

WA

WVijay Kul &
Cempany Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : L6th May,2019

Pramod Kumar Ghpta
Chief Fmangial Officer
Place 1 Ahmedabad
Date - 16th May,2019



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2019

A. Equity share capital
Amouit in Rs.

As at April 1, 2017 54,39,70,030
Issue of Equity Share capital 26,88,17,200
As at March 31,2018 81,27,87,230
Issue of Equity Share capital 10,00,00,000
As at March 31, 2019 91,27,87,230

B. Other equity

Amount in Rs.

Note! Note 12
Balance as at Aprit 1, 2017 59,05,31,059 7,34,93,80,770 26,171,757 (3,45,05,04,130) 4,49,20,25,456
Profit / {Loss) for the Year " (4,09,08,181) (4,09,09,181})
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the Year (1,16,02,668) (1,16,02,668)
Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the
Ycar - - - (5,25,11,849) (5,25,11,849)
Add: Addition dirring the yvear 2,23,11,82,760 2,23,11,82,760
Contribution from the Holding Coempany for
Employee Stock Options { Refer Note 39) - - 48,25,394 - 48,25,394
Balinteas at Macéh3 132018 159053105 58,05,63,530 4;43;15 (3;50:30;15,979) 667,55 21,761
Balance as at April 1, 2018 59,05,31,059 9,58,05,63,530 74,43;151 (3,50,30,15,979) - 6,67,55,21,761
Profit / (Loss} for the Year - {4,20,10,211) (4,20,10,211)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the Year (3,23,75,281) {i,61,237) (3,25,36,518)
Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the
Year - - - (7,43,85,492) (1,61,237) {7,45,46,729
Add: Additicn during the vear 90,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Contribution from the Holding Company for
- 45,70,558 - - 45,70,558
:05:63,530: 0 511,20, 13130 {357, 74,01,471) 7,50;55:45,590:

The d@ccompanying notes are an integral part of these thancial statements
As perour report el even date

For Serab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Registration No. F{0417W

For and on behalf of the board of directers of
Arving Lifestyle Brands Limited
g

e L,

Suresh Jayaragian
Managing Director &CEQ
{DIN -03033110)
Place : Alumedabad
Date : 16th May,2019

CA, Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892
Place : Ahmedabad
Date: [611 May, 2019

Pramod Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Ahmedabad
Date ": 161k May,2019

Kamal Singal
Director
{DIN-02524196)
Place - Ahmedabad
Date ; 161k May,2019

Vijay Kun!
Cempany Secretary
Place : Ahinedabad
Date : 16th May,2019



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019

1. Corporate Information

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited ('the Company’) is engaged in the business of distribution and
Retailing of Readymade Garment Apparels and Accessories. The brands portfolio of the
Company includes Domestic and International brands like US Polo, Nautica, GANT, GAP, TCP,
Cherokee etc.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Fashions Limited and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 16, 2019.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{("Ind AS") as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards
specified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts} Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP") and other relevant provision of the Act.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

« Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;

» Share based payments;

» Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

* Vaiue in Use



3. Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company ih preparing its
financial statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
o It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting pericd.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal cperating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.
The said estimates are hased on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date,



3.3.Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has
elected to apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1 April 2015,
As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that
date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with minimal adjustment.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Business combinations between entities under common control are accounted for at carrying
value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of rescurces embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Company entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

» Assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent cenditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subseqguent its settlement is accounted for within equity.



Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-conirolling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCIL.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Far the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabiiities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first te reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss., An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

3.4.Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is aiso the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functicnal currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities



denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value Is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit.or
loss, respectively).

3.5.Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or ltability
Or

= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
ocbservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
« level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
+ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable.



* Level 3 — Valuation techniques faor which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents. '

Management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.
* Significant accounting judgementis, estimates and assumptions
¢« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
e Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transition
o Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.6.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the



recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cosis are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria
for a provision are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for following assets
category as shown in Table below,

Leasehold Improvements On Lease Term 5 to 9 Years
Buildings 30 Years 20 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Years 6 to 15 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years 6 to 8 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years & to 9 Years
Computer Software - 5 Years
Motor Cars 6 Years 4 Years

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act
2013.

Any change in useful file are being applied prospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 -
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.



When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the
period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.7.Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance
leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
50 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term,

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect
and lease expense is accounted in such case by actual rent for the period.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except the case
where incremental lease reflects infiationary effect and lease income is accounted in such
case by actual rent for the period. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating iease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue

- in the Statement of Profit and Loss, in the period in which they are earned.



Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

3.8.Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

3.9.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the perjod in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful jife or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Job Workers’ Network Value, Vendors’ Network Value and Distribution Network Value have

been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period of five years.

Value of License Brands acquired under demerger scheme has been amortized on Straight
Line basis over the period of ten years.

Software is depreciated over management estimate of its useful life of 3 years.



3.10.Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

* Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first
out basis.

» Stock in Trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

All other inventories are valued at cost. The stock of waste is valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.11.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company,
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other availabie fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company's CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year,

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other

g



comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

3.12.Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance cbligation upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Group has adopted Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from contracts
with customers” under the full retrospective approach. Accordingly, the comparatives have
been adjusted to give the effect of Ind AS 115. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is
insignificant on the Group's financial performance.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group, the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government, The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pr[cmg latitude and is
also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with delivery of
goods. Revenue from export sales are recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from the sale
of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable including
excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.



Sale of goods — customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty peint programme which allows customers to accumulate points
when they purchase the products. The peints can be redeemed for free products, subject to
a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated between the
product sold and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points equal to
their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by applying a statistical analysis. The
fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are
redeemed.

Sales Return

The Group recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on
net basis of the margin of the sales. Therefore, a refund liability is recognized for the products
expected to be returned.

Rendering of services

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which
the products or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management
fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Revenue from other services are recognised based on the services rendered in accordance
with the terms of contacts on the basis of work performed.

Gift Vouchers
The amount collected on sale of a gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred to
revenue (sales) when redeemed or fo revenue (sale of services) on expiry

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Profit or loss on sale of Investments

Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Group, and is
determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and
other incidental expenses.

Insurance claims
Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Group is

reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.



3.13.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financia! assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

(if)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
o Financial assets at amortised cost
» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCID)
* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
* Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

» Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.



Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method,.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified

as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,.

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.



(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reciassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
Cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
rnew amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value, Copsequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised

cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required,

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:



o Financial assets that are debt instrumerits, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

o Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not containi a significant financing
component

» Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

» All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entify reveris to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected



in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured a@s at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/

origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiaily at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii}Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

below:

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities heid
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or less. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the



cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

« Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such a&n exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

c) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if @ hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
e Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
» Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability



or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratic and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or foss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(ii)Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised Immediately in

the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm cornmitments, as well as forward
commeodity contracts for its exposure fo volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.
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Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs, When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or roltover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

d) OffSetting_ of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recoghised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.14.Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.15.Export incentives
Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
3.16.Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is

recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in



equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business cembination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

=  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaifable to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recdgnised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.



Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified pericd. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.17.Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the peried in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company's approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,
employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company's defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the cobligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.



¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’'s defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.18.Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the

grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit.and loss expense or credit for a
period repreasents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest, Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair
value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised
is the expense had the terms had not been medified, if the original terms of the award are
met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as



measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately

through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

3.19.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.20.Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtuaily certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

4, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

4.1.Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
C‘ following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
4

/{/. / the financial statements:



Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner
is acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary
obligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale
of goods. The Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent
basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business
partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

4.2.Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligaticn is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 30.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannct be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility.. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair vaiue of financial instruments. See Note 34 for further disclosures.



Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtful debts is Rs.8,10,94,243/- (March 31, 2018: Rs.9,53,45,365/-).

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using
a binomial model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most approptiate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also
requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be
measured at the time of grant. The expenses recognised for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 39.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has Rs. 9,43,84,544/- (March 31, 2018: Rs. 9,83,18,163/-) of tax credits
carried forward. The Company also has Rs. 84,26,86,922/- (March 31, 2018: Rs.
110,20,31,845/-) of unused losses available for offsetting against future taxable income. The
Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that could
partly support the reccegnition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the
Company has determined that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried
forward and unused losses carried forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Revenue recognition - Customer loyalty program reward points

The Company estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Customer loyaity program
by applying statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions about
expected redemption rates, the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the
future, expiry of loyalty points and customer preferences. Such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainty. As at 31 March 2019, the estimated liability towards unredeemed
points amounted to approximately Rs. 2,01,84,025/- (March 31, 2018: Rs. 4,22,58,072/-).

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.9 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of

Intangible assets has been disclosed in Note 6.



Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.6 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying
value of Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation -is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm'’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapoelation purposes.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 {a) Investments Amount in Rs.

Investment in government secnrities

National Saving Certificates 1.30,000 1,50,000
Total Investments 1,50,000 1,50,000
Total non~current investntents 1,50,000 1,50,000

Total current investments - -

7 (b) Trade receivables- Current Amount in Rs.

Unsecured, considered good 8,52,38,14,993 6,75,30,10,540
Credit Impaired 8,10,94,243 95345365
Less : Allowance for doubtful debis {8,10,94,243) (9,53,43,365)
Less : Provision for Refundable liability (1,10,35,98,772) {50,90,19,930)
Total Trade and other receivaliles 7,42,02,16,221 6,24,39,90,6E1

Trade receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note §3(a).
Refundable Liability as on March 31,2018 15 converted into Revenue from Operations.

Allowance for doubtful debts

Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the lifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.
Movement in allowance for doubtfied debe : Amount in Rs.

¥

Balance-af the beginning of thé year 9,53,45,365 1,49,99,318
Add : Allowance for the year - 2,03,45,987
Less : Write off of bad debis {net of recovery) £1,42,51,122) -

Balance at the end of the year 8,10,94,243 9,53,45,365

7 {c) Loans Receivable considered good- Unsecured

ettt

Amoont in Rs,

Non-current

Loans to employees i 17,35,196 34,41,137
17,35,196 34,41,137

Current
Loans to employces. 3,12,97 341 2,94,33,418
3,12,97,341 29433418
Total Loans 3,30,32,537 3,28,74,555

7 (4) Cash and cash equivalent Amount in Rs.

Cash on hand 47,472 15,946
Balance with Bank
Current zccounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 377,638,119 76,659,054
[ Deposit Account 50,000 . 2,03,60.000

Tutal cash and cash equivalents 3,78,05,582 2,80,45,000




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

7 {e} Other bank balance Amount in Rs,

Held as Margin Money* 4,19,51,932 15,95,72,116
Lodged with Sales Tax Department 52,924 2,09,794
Total other bank balances 4,20,04,856 15,97,81,910

* Under lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility

7 (f) Other financial assets

Awmount in Rs.

Unsecured Considered good unless otherwiss stated

Non-current
Security deposits 1.90,60,11,183 1,80,49,68,544
Bank depesits with materity of more than 12 months 19,67,078 1,10,94,106
1,90,79,78,261 1,81,60,62,650
Corrent
Security deposits
Considered Good 4,25,11,535 2.83,16,583
Doubtful 93,065,048 2,35.00,000
Less Allowance for Doubtful Deposits (93,05,048} {2,35,00,000)
4.25.11,535 2.83,16,583
Income receivable 21,62,030 -
Accrued Interest 12,71,050 34,17,514
Mark to market of derivative financial instruments - 30,095
Insurance cfaim receivable 62,904,060 1,10,22,317
Other Receivables 19,25,56,588 20.7536,215
24,45,05,263 25,03,23,124
Total financial assets 2,15,24,83,524 2,06,63,85,774

Other Current Financial assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed nnder Note 13{a).

Allowance fur deubtful deposits
Company has provided allowance for doubtful-deposits based on the lifetime expected credit loss modek using provision matrix:

Movement in allowance for douhtful deposits Amount.in Rs..
Par ——— -

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,35,00,000 2,00,00,000
Add - Aflowance for the year 51,12,740
Less : Write off of doubtful deposils.(net of recavery) {1,41,94,952) (16,12,740)
Balance at the cnd of the year 93,05,048 2,35,00,000

7 {g) Financial assets by category
Atuount in Rs

Particulars:
March 31,2019
Investments

- Equity shares
- Debentures

- Govermment secutities - - 1,50,000
- Limited liabitity partnership . - -

‘Trade receivables - - 742,02,16,221
Loans - ’ - 3,30:32,537
Cash & Bank Balances - - 7,98,70.438
Other Financial Assets - - 2,15,24,83,524
Fotal Financial asscts . - - 4,68,57,52,720)

March 31,2018
lavestments
~ Equity shares

- Debentures

- Government secaritics - - 1,50,000
- Limited liability partnership

Trade receivables - - ©,24,39,90,610
Loans - - 3,28,74,55%
Cash & Bank Balances - - 18,78,26,910
Oiher Financial Assets - - :2.06.63,85,774
Totsl Financial asscts . - §,53,12,27 §4%

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 37
Fair value disclosares for financia? assets and liabilities arc in Note 35 and fair value hicrarchy disclosures for investment are in
Note 36.



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 8 : Qther current / non-current assets

Amount in Rs,

Non-current

Capital advances 31,32,51,409 4,89 95952
3,32,51,409 4,89,95,952
Current
Advance 1o suppliers- Considered good 44,88,40,563 30,18,08,162
Doubtfal 317,538,008 8,55,59,602
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (3,17,38,008) {8.,55,59,602)
44,88,40,563 30,19,08,162
Export incentive receivable 74,01,821 66,93,106
Prepaid cxpenses 7,16,53,968 4,53,25,360
Salestax paid under protest 39,62,80,034 47,38,29,676
Returnable Assed 1,56,76,60,625 1,77,26,95,03¢6
GST Receivable 48,94,61.414 5,87,02,513
Other Crrrent Asset 18,56,70,870 31,44,63,252
3,16,69,69,295 3,04,29,17,605
Total 3,20,02,20,704 3,06,19,13,557.

Other carrent asscls are-given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note [3(a).
Returtable Assef as on March 31,2018 is converted into Trade Receivables.

Provision for Doubtful Advances

RS Rss
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,55,59,602 4,55,59,602
Add : Provision made during the year -
Less : Wrte off of doubtiul advaiices (5,38,01,594) -
Balance at the end of the year . 3,17,58,008 8,55,59,602

Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Amount in Rs.

Trims and accessories 2,14,32,880 4,31,35,510
Trims ins transit - 63,84,327
Stock-in-trade 6,57,98,81,361 5,20,13,23,670
Stock-in-trade in transit 1,68,71,878 £,52,23,619
Packing materials 7.07,56 454 6,23,54, 881
Total 6,68,80,42,573 5,32,83,82,009

Taveatories arc given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a).

Inventory write downs are accomnied , considering the natuwre of inventory, 2geing and net realisable value, for Rs
25,54,41,635¢Previous year- Rs 25,93,22,956). The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
profit and loss.

Nate £0 : Current Tax Assets (Net)

Awmount in Rs.
Feli313:20138]

Tax Paid in Advance {Net of Provision) 15.64,78,811 10,12,56,030

Total 15,64,78,81¢ 10,12,56,030




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Linited
Notes to the Financial Statcments

Note 11 : Equity sharc capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 10,00,00,000 1.00.00,00,000 8,50,00,000 85,00.00,000

Issued ,Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,12,78.723 91.27.87.230 8,12,78,723 81,27.87,230

Total 9,12,78,723 51,27,87,230 8,12,78,723 81,27,87,230

11.1. Reconciliation of shares ousstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

At the beginning of the period 8,12,78,723 81,27.87,230 5,43,97,003 54,39,70,030
Add:

Shares issued during the year 1,00,00.000 10,00,00,000 2.68,81,720 26.88,17,200
Qutstanding at the end of the period 9,12,78,723 91,27.87.230 8,12,78,723 81,27,87,230

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred 1o as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Bach shareholder is entitled 1o one vole per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the
cquity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amouats, in proportion to their sharcholding.

11.3. Shares hield by holding company

Arvind Fashions Limited (along with nominges} 9.12,78.723 91,27,87,230 8,12,78.723 81,27.87.230

11.4. Number of Shares held by each shareliolder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

: archolding N es
Arvind Fashions Limited (along with nOMinges) 9.12,78,723 [00.00% 8,12,78.723 100.00%

11.5. Shares ailptted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash (during 5 years immediately preceding March 31, 2019)
62,85.000 shares of Rs. 10 each werc alfotted as fully paid up in the year 2613-14 pursuant to the sclieme of arrangetment without payment being received in cash.

11.6. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 38



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

Amount in Rs.

tMarehial; 201

Naote 12.1 Reserves & Surplus

Capital reserve
Balance as per ast financial statements
Add/Less: Adjustment for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securifies premivm
‘Balance as per last financial statements
Add: addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Contribution from Parent for ESQP (Refer Note 39)
Balance as per last financial staterments
Add: Centribution received during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings
Ralance as per last financizl statements
Add: profit for the year
Add / (1.ess). OCT for the year

59,05,31,059

59,05,31,059

9,58,05,03,330
50,00,00,000
10,48,03,63,530

74.43,151
45,70,558
1,20,13,70%

(3.50,30,15,979)
(4,20,10.251)
3.23,75.281)

59,05,31,059

59,05,31,055

7.34,93,80,77C
2,23,11,82,760
9,58,05,63,530

26,317,757
48,25,394
74,43,151

{3,45,05,04,130)
(4,09,09,181)

(1.16,02,608)

Belance at the end of the year (3,57,74,01,471) (3,59,30,15,979)
Total reserves & surplus 7,50,57,06,827 6,67,55,21,761
Note 12,2 Other comprehensive Encome/ (Loss)

Cash Flow Medge reserve

Balanice as per last financial statemehts -

Add: gain / (foss) for the year (2,47,844) -

Less: Tax impact 86,607 -

Balance at the-end ot the year (1,61,237) -
Total Other comprebensive Income/ (Loss} {1,61,237) -
‘Total Other equity “7,50,55,43,5%0 6,67,55,21,761

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows

Capitzl Reserve

Capitat reserve represents capilal reserve on amalgamation/business combination. ‘This reserve arose pursuant to scheme of arrangement and shall niot be

considered to be reserve created by the company
Securities Preminm

Securities premiwn reserve is created due to prensium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance wilk the provision of the Companies Act.

Share based payment reserve

This reserve relates to share options granted by the company to its employee share option plan. Further information about share based payment to

employees is sent out in Note 39

Cash fiow hedge reserve

The cash flow hedaing reserve represents the cumatlative effeetive portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of
hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or foss arising on the changes of the fair value of the designated portion of the
hedging instramerts that are recognised and accumulated under the cash flow hedae reserve will be rechassifted (o profit or loss enly when the bedged
transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis-adjustment 1o the noa - financial hedged tem
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Note 13 : Financial liabilities

Amount in Rs.

13 (a) Borrowings

Lang-term Borrowings (refer note 1 to I belaw)
Non-current portion
Sccurcd
Term {oan from Banks

Unsecured
Non Convertible Debentures

Current maturities
Secured
Term loan from Banks
Non Convertible Debentures

Total long-term horrowings
Shori-term Borrowings (refer note HI below)
Secured
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Barnks

(including channel financing)

Unsecured

67,13,40,860

67,13,40,060

31,16,08,625

31,16,68,625

98,30,08,585

4,61,10,60,781

30,06,83,630

49,98 82,426
£0,05,66,056
48,70,15,433
24,98 34,400

73,68,49,833

1,53,74,15,889

2,43,05,91,531

Under Buyer's Credit Ammangement 31.41,52,763 24,18,51,791
Intercorporate. Deposits - From Related Parties - + 54,51,38,305

From Others - 6,50,959

Commercial Paper 35,00,00,000 50,00,00,000

Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 30,02,00,000

Totzl short-ferm borrowings 4,67,52,13,544 4,01,82,73,086
Total borrowings 5,65,82,22,229 5,55,56,88,975

1 Details of Term Loans

a Loans of Rs 94,61,08 659 is secured against fiest charge over the entire fixed assets of the Company bath present and future and-second charge is created
over the entire stock, receivables and other current assets of the company excluding stocks of Nautica Brand.

b Secured Loans of Rs.. 71,91,95,253 are puaranteed by Arvind Fashions Limited being the Holding Company and Secured Loans of Rs. 94,61,08,059 are

additzonally guaranteed by Arvind Linited .

¢ Hire Purchase Loan from Banks and Others of Rs 3,69,60,026 are secured by hypothecation of related vehicles.

d Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

From Ranks

Rupee Loans

Rupee Eoans

Hire Parchase Loan 3,69,00,026

27,91,08,659

66,70,00,000

8.65% -8 70%

8.65%

Repayable in quarterly instalments ranging
between 4 to 26 with moratorium period in
seme of the loans

Repayble in 22 inslalments in 5 years

Monthly payment of Equated Monthly
Tnstalments beginning from the month
subsequent o laking the loans




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes 1o the Financial Statements

I

=)

Delails of Unsecured Borrowings- Non Convertible Debentures
Non Convestible Debentures of Rs 74,97,16.826 which were bearing interest of 14.35% per annum by 750 Non Cenvertible Debentures of face value Rs
£0,00,000 each were redeemed at par on Fuly 27, 2018

=

111 Dretails of Short Term Barrowing
a Nature of Security
‘Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks
Loans from banks are secured by:
i First charge over entice stocks, receivables and other curvent assets excluding stocks of Nautica Brand and second charge over entive fixed assets of the
Company both presetyt and future.

ii. Working Capital Loan of Rs 4,01,10,60,781 is secured by Corporate Guarantee given by Arvind Limited and Working Capital Eoans of
Rs.3,13,87,39,821 are addtionally secured by Gaurantee of Arvind Fashions Limited, the holdmy Company.

b Rate of Interest
1. Loans from banks carry interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 1.5% above base rate.
ii. Buyers Credit carry interest ranging from 3.2% to 3.4%
iti. Workmg Capital E.oans carry interest mnging from 8 5% to 9.5%.
iv.  Commercial Paper carmies interest rate of 8:20%.

13 (b) Trade payahle

Amaount in Rs.
TsEch

Current
Acceptances 2,16,65,69,983 1,64,64,85,913
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note
Delow) 1,05,13,72,760 28,02,27,625
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 5,69,72,08,286 547.11,98,621
Total 8,91,51,51,029 7,40,69,12,159

a  Acceptance and Qther trade payables are not-interest bearing and are normeally settled on 30-90 days ferms

b Based on the information available, the disclosures as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Small Enterprise Development
(MSMED) Act, 2006 are presented as follows :

(@) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (1o be shoiwn separately)
remaining unpaid 1o any supphier at the end of each accountiny year;

i) Principal 1,05,13.72,760 28,92,27,625
ii} Interest 11,03,47 407 5.63,33,634
(b} the amaunt of imerest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, - 1,87,46,84%

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2006}, along with
‘the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting vear;

(¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making 11,03 47 407 56333634
payment {which has been paid but beyond the appemied day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Micre, Smail and Medium
TEnterprises Development Act, 2006,

i) Lh:: amourt of snterest accrued and remainmy unpaid at the end of each 11,03 47,407 5,63,33,634
accounting year; and

(e} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 11,03.47.407 5,63,33,634
succeedmp years, until such date-when the inierest dues above are actuaily paid to
the smail enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduetible expenditure
under segtion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006
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13 (c) Other financial liahilities

Amopunt in Rs.
AR EE M 2018;

Nen-current
Dreposits from customers and others 53,60,37,098 41,73,77,180
53,60,37,098 41,73,77,180
Current
Current maturity of fong term borrowings 31,16,68,625 73,68,49,833
Interest accrued but not due 3.70.54,504 8.60.92,224
Interest accrucd and due 13,68,33,806 5,63,33,634
Payable o employees 16,07,02,133 24,34,52,481
Book overdraft 48.11.404 23784802
Payable inrespect of capital goods 10,17,77,953 20,47.45,306
Foreign Exchange Forward contracts { Cash flow hedge) 217,749 -
Other financiz! liabilities - 6,44,17.276
7530,73,174 1,41,53,09,556
Total 1,28,91,10,272 1,83,26,86,736
13 () Fimancisl liabilities by category Antoupt in Rs,
iPariulars’ itel i artised Cis
March 31,2019
Borrowings - - 5,34,65,53,604
Trade payable - - 8,91,51,54,029
Other fingncial liabilities - - -
Current maturity of lony term borrowings - - 31,16,68,625
Payable to employees - - 16,07,09,133
Deposits from customers and others - - 53,60,37.098
Interest accrued and due - - 13,68,33.306
Interest accrued but not dug - - 3,70,54,504
Foreign Exchange Forward contracts { Cash flow hedge) - « 2,17,749
Payable in respect of capital goods - - §0,17,77,953
Book overdrafl - - 48,11,404
Total Financial liabilities - - 15,55,08,14,905
March 31,2013
Borrewings - - 4,81,88 39,142
Trade payable - - 7.40,69,12,159
Other financial Labilities - - £,40,17,276
Current maturity of lony term borcowings - - 73,68,49.833
Payable to employees - - 434,82 481
Deposits from castomers and others - - 41,73,77,180
Interest accrved and due - - 5,63,33,634
Interest accrued but not due - - 8,60,92,224
Payable in respect of capital goods - - 20.47,46.306
Book overdraft - - 2,37.84,302
Total Financial liahilities - = 14,05,84,38,037

For Financial instruments risk management objectéives and policies, refer Note 37
Fair value disclosures for financiz] assels and Habilities are in Note 35 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are in Note 36,
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Note 14 : Provisions

Amount in Rs.

e

Long-term
Provision for employce benefits (refer Note 30)
Provision for feave encashment 7.74.55,501 7.40,27,780
Provision for Gratuity 7,69.10,489 6,15,35,374
15,43,66,390 13,55,63,154
Short-tern
Provision lor employee benefits (refer Note 30)
Provision for leave encashment 3.37,82,505% 91,83.676
Qthers
Provision for Wealth tax 1,46,070 1,46,070
Short term provision for ligation/disputed matters 13,36,53,341 997027133
16,75,81,886 10,90,32, 479
Total 32,19,48,276 24,45,95.633

Provision for Litigation/Disputes
The Group has made provisions for pending disputed matters in respect of Indirect Taxes Jike Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Custom Duty,
the liability which may arise in the fiture, the quantum whercof will be determined as and when the matters are disposed off.

Amount in Rs.
e 3 L2019 Midrch 312018
Balance as per Jast financial statements 9,57,02,733 3,00,00.00G
Addition /Setth t during the {Net) 3,39,50,578 €,97,62,733
‘Bal X ¥ 6,533 11 9,97.02733;

Amount in Rs.

Advance from custotners 5,50,79,930 4,56,70,679.
Stawtory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 21,61,35,462 11,54,44,968
Unaccrued Sale 113,28 775 -
Deferred income of loyalty program reward points ( Refer noie a below) 2,01,84,025 4,22 58072
Total 30,27,28,192 20,33,73,719

Deferred income of Loyalty Program Reward Points
The Company has deferred the revenue related to the customer loyalty program rewnrd points. The movement.in deferred revenue for those reward points

are given below:

Amount in Rs,
Mireh31;201

Balance as per jast financial statements . 422,58 072 2,81,24,899
Add: Provision made during the vear (Net) 3,13,63,477 7,37,58,65¢
{Less). Redemption made during the year 5,34,37,524 556,25 477

Balance at the end of the year 2,01,84,025 4,22,58,072




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
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Note 16 : Revenue from operations

Asmount in Rs,

Sale of products 31,03,10,31,34¢ 27,30,01,36,930
Sale of services 5,64,27.006 42,87,83,875

Opersting income

Export incentives 978,117 23,41,829
Gift Voucher income 1,28,65,734 -
Foreignt exchange fluctuation on vendors and custemers 3,25,00,325 -
Royalty 36,31,70,701 -
Miscellaneous receipts 3,54,07,542 [8,55,27t
44,4922 419 41,97,100
Total 31,53,23,80,766 27,73,31,17,905

Amount in Rs.
T

(Particulars
A. Revenue based on Geography :
i. Domestic 31,45,84,01.406 27.65,03,95.392
ii. Export 7,39,79,360 8,27.22,513
31,53,23,80,766 27,73,31,17,905
B. Revenue based un Business Segment
Branded Apparels 31,53,23,80.766 27.73,31,17.905

Antount in Rs.

&Y. . A 5
Cantract Price 34,06,52,45,629 28,76,60,05,272
Less: -
Schenies and Discounts 2,44,58,18,132 1,89,00,04,078
Customer Loyalty Program 8,70,46,731 14,28,83,28%
Tatal Revenue from Operations 31,53,23,80,766 27,73,31,17,905

Note 17 : Other income

Amount in Rs.

Tnterest income 44,065,391 2.27,07358
Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 6,068,160 15,54,976
Exchange difference - 66,68,55%
Missellaneous income 1,24,48,071 71.81,317

Total 1,74,61,622 3,81,12,204




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 18 ; Cost of Trims and accessories consumed

Steck at the beginning of the year 43135510 4,28.22.510
Add : Purchases 95,93,209 1,84.25.23 1

5.27,28,719 6,09,48,741
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 214,32 880 4,38,35,510
Total 3,12,95.839 1,78,13,231

Note 19 : Purchases of stock-in-trade
Amount in Rs.
Trded

220
Garments aind Accessories 16,61,21,26,240 11,48,93,42,389
Tatal 16,61,21,20,240 11,48,93,42,389

Note 20 : Changes in invenlories

Amount in Rs,

H

Stocl at the end of the vear
Stock-in-trade 6,57,98,81,361 5,20,13,23,670
6,57,98,81,361 5,20,13,23,670

Stock at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade 5,20,£3,23,670 6,58,41,19,504
5,20,13,23,670 6,58,41,19,504
Total (1,37,85,57,691) 1,38,27,95,834

Nate 21 : Employee benefits expense

Amount in Rs.

3 1Ay

Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. (Refer Note 30) 2,34,73,45,308 2,22,81,58,297
Contribution 1¢ provident, gratuity and other funds { Refer Note 30) 22,6032, 839 18,60,10,946
Welfare and tigining expenses 25,36,09 604 19,37,03,252
Share based payment to employees - {Refer Note 39) 45,790,558 48,725,394
Total 2,53,15,58,30% 2.61,16,97,889

Nofe 22 ; Finance costs
: Amount in Ks,
TEArENde

Interest CXDCNSE o

“Term Loans ’ 4,68,26,636 $.20,10,741
Cash Credit Facilities 15,74,51,97i £,96,22.200
Intercst expense - others 48,35,16,798 38,20.24,576
Other finance cost 19,4034 693 11,73, 87,271
Tatal §8,38,30,008 67,10,44,788

Note 23 : Depreciation and anzortization cxpense

Amount in Rs.
dar:Ende

Deprectation on Tangible assets (Refer Note 3) 97.4956,663 21,10,31,105
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 12,27,99.432 13,63,52,048

Tatal 1,89,77,56,095 1,04,73,83,152




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
‘Note 24 : Other expenses

e e————eeeeeeeee 13+t e

Power and fiel 37,16,66,506 30,50,37.366
insurance 3,85,86,625 3,16,81,119
Processiig charges 1,81,44,371 2,00,88.552
Printittg, stationery & communication 12,44,86,925 45,2907
Rent Expenses 2,80,33,13.166 2.41,70,46,828
Commission & Brokerage 2,96,47.91.222 2,31.24‘356.758
Rates and taxes 2,28.62,827 6,33,09,916
Repairs :
To Building 1,47,37,140 1,19,42,913
To others 50,60.46,895 50,38.27,606
Rayalty on-Sales 94,08,61.269 83,46,52 368
Freipght, insurance & clearing charge 38,11,54,628 27,29,8%,269
Legal & Professional charges 11,24,00.440 15,80,07,108
Housekeeping Charges 13,93,80,879 9,90,98,599
Security Charpges 13,76,57,735 10,87,64,949
Computer Expenses . 16.55.46,572 10,37.49,169
Canveyance & Travelling expense 22,60,72,26¢ 17.91,53,327
Advertisement and publicigy 1,09,76.01,490 G5.,13,94,222
Design Fees - F7.83,924
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 12,71,25,017 12,12,61,507
Packing Materials Expenses 11,25,57.982 9.25,56,705
Contract Labour Charges 86,31,10,458 £4,84,20,95%
Sampling and Testing Expenses 7,36,22.639 £3,84,08,155
Director’s sitting fees 21,000 1,77,200
Provision for Litigation/Disputes ( Refer note 14} 3.39,50,578 6,97,02,733
Provision for doubtfi} debts and advances (net) B 51,12,740
Provision for doubtful debts - 2,03,45,987
-Auditor's remuneration - refer note (i) below 66,443,140 87,09,000
Business Conducting Fees 20,50,50¢ 1,08,60,408
Bank charges 4,55,18,491 4,23.07,212
Warehouse Charges 8,19,07.020 10,75,03,610
Spend on'CSR activilies { Refer Note 34) 2212176 -
Exchange differcrce {nei) 28,26,088
Loss on assets sold, demolished, discarded and scrapped B 7.09,75,037
HVAC Charyes 7,44,05,443 7,41,27,354
Miscellaneous expenses 60,82,116 6,56,54,193
Toial 11.41,77,07,512 10,66,93,52,598

{i) Payment to Auditers (Net of taxes)

v

Payment to Auditors as

Auditors 45,35,060 32,000,000
For lax andit 16,15,000 11,70,000
For Other certification work 4,69,200 20,48,020
For reimbursement of expenses 4,223,940 290,980

Total 66,43,140 §7,09,000
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Nate 25 : Income tay
The major compoacnts of et tas sxpense for the Penod cded March 31, 2619 and March 31, 2018 arc

_Amount in Rs

Stalement of Proft and Loss

Current tax
Cawvent meome tax - -
Derernfl iax
Dferred tax Chargedi{ Credity BGLA2.597 {79390
Encome tax eXpense i:[_v_ari:d in the statemnent u{BruI'it and Tasa 864,452,197 {T.84,50, 351
Amuvunt in K,

OCT sectiyn

Alatcirdy

Statement te tHber comprehensive income (OCK)

Dieferret tax Charge/(Credity £1.7476.576) (62,32.225)
Defetred tax charged 1o OCT - ¢1,74.76,576) {62.32.225)

Reconcilistion of ax expensc and the accounting profit nnuluphed by domestic Lax rate for the year cuded March 31, 2019 and Marck 31, 2008
A) Currené lax

Apwust in Rs.
Ja 1,208

Accvunling profitifusa) befure tax 441,314,980 {11,93.9%.712

Tax i) 34.944% {March 31, 20)8: 13,9449 L34,21,47Y 4.17,23,036)

Adjustment

Expenditure nof deduciible for Tux 707208 1,3685,963

Rate dferences and other reosons - {5,24,33 500

Al the effective income tax rate of 195.19% {March 31, 2018 .65.74% 5 £,6042,197 ﬂﬂ-i,?ll,s!”!
Ataount In Rs.

B} Defetred tax

Aceelerated depraciation for Lax purposes §4.50,25,102 LIBT3 {233 86.41.72%)
Tifective Iinerest Melud Term Loan {941,623} (341.703) 3.99.92( 341,703
Impaument of ReceivablesAdvancesinduding allowmee for ECL) - . 36061531
Fxponditure allowable on payment basis{43 I2) 167,87 351 0,509,153 (4,16, 95237y [83,33,033)
Unused losses a ible for olTseling against futere faxslds income #,26,86.922 1,10,26,31,845 25,93.44,923 130374622
Unused tax credit available for pffsetting against futune faxable incoms MAT Cruditsy 943,584,344 PRLIBISE 3231619 -
Cthers 46700535 2,69,46,250 {1,97,54,283) i215.21 916}
Deferred tax chargef{credity GA665,621 (BA7,32816)
Net deflerred tux assets/(liabHities} 1934692961 2003358581

Reflected in the hatance sheel as follows

Duferred tax assets £.93.56,34,583 ZIH),37.00.284

Dreferred [ax liubilities 441 523y (3.41.703)

Deferreit fax Habj 1934692958 200, 3358 581

Amaunt in Ks.

Opening balance a5 of Apiit 1 1 1318635965
Tax eredaficharge) during the period recognised in profit of ks (RAEA2,INT) T.84.50,591
Tax credhf{charge) during the peried recopmised in OCT 1,74.76,576 62.32,225
Clusing balunce as at March 31 i.9346.42,560 2,00,33,58.551

The Company ollsds iax assets und Kabifities i and only iFit has & legally enforceable 1ight o set off cirment tax assets and cuvent fax labilities and the deferred tay assets aind dererred tas fiabilities relate 4 jicome taxes levied
by the same tax authordty,
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Note 26 : Contingent liabilities

Amount in Rs,

Contingent lishitities not provided for

a. Bills discounzed - 787.65.657
% Clzims against Company not acknowiedged as debts 9,87.20,372 6,56,41,931
c. Disputed demands in respect of
Excise/Customs duty 11,04,61,000G 18,61,G64
Goods and Service Tax 222,008
Sales tax and VAT-{Refer note | below) 47,87,65.647 2.01,61,14,304
Tncome tax 8,57,55,476 3.91,84.003
Textile Committee Cess 1G,94,000 710,94,000
Provident Fund 75,60,000 75,60,000
d. Guarantee given by bank on behalf of the Company 3,00,600 14,30,11,957
Note

[ Disputed demand for Sales Tax and VAT includes demand raised mainly due to non-submission of varicus statutory forms te
agpropriate authority. Subsequent to the demand, the Company has collected forms covering substantial amonnt of demand
The Company is in the process of collecting balance formis and lience no provision # considered necessary for the same.

2 The Company does not expect any reimburesements in respacts of the above contingent liabilities.

Nete 27: Capital cominitment and other commilments

Amount in Rs.
Tareh 312182

Capital commitnients
Estimated amount of Cantracts remaining to e executed on capital accoum 7.70,50,500 20,32,51,896.
and not provided for

Note 25 ; Foreign Exchange Derivatives asd Exposures not hedged

A. Forcign Exch Derivalives

Amotnt:is

Forward contracts
Porchasg usp 21,72.068 15,05,45,703 15,25,503 9,9628,123

All derivative coniracts stated abave are for the purpose of hedging the underlying ferergn currency exposure.

B. Exposure Not Hedged

Recetvables usD {38,814 95,509,680 1,69,159 L,10,24,92)
Payable towards borrowings usnD 36,59.563 253077053 21,94,6%0 14,30.38,284
Payable to creditors usp 20,79,306 : 14,37,94,388 28,96,263 18,87,64,080

BURO 299 23,254 1,68,030 1,35,78,100

SEK 984,972 73,585,275 94,786 2,45,.494




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
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Note 29 : Segment Reporting

Operating segment have been identified on the basis of nature of products and other quantiiative criteria specified in the Ind
AS 108. Qperating segmerits are reported in a manner consistent with the interal reporting provided fo the. Chief Operating

Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company.

The Company's business activity falls within a single operating business segment of Branded Appeals (Garments and Accessories) through Retail

and Departmental Store facilities.

Geographical segment

Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world

Amount in Rs.

2
i
|
:

Segment Revenue*

a)In India 31,45,84,01.406 27,65,03,93,392
b) Rest of the world 7,39,79,360 8,27.22,513
Total Sales 31,53,23,80,766 27,73,31,17,905
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets®*

a} In India 24,87.71.76,253 21,98,36,%1.459
1v) Rest of the world 1,60,47,940 1,10,24,921
Total 24,59,38,24,193 2§,99,47,16,380
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@

a) In India 2,96,09,87,835 3,01,75,74,306
) Rest of the world - -
Total 2,96,09,87,835 3,01,75,74,306

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on ocation of Assets

@ Excluding Financial Assets-and Deterred Tax assets.

Note:

Considering the nalure of business of group in which it aperates , the group deals with various customers including
multiple geographics. Consequently, none of the customer contribute rmaterially to the revenue of the group.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes 1o the Financial Statements

Note 31 : Related Party Trznsactions

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on *Refated Party Disclusures” (END AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as follows :

Nare of Related Parties

Nature of Relationship &

Period

Arvind Limited

Arvind Fashions Ead,
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Privatc Limited

Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Put Ltd

Arvind Ruf & Tuf Pvt Limited

Arvind True Blue Limited

Arvind Premium Retail Limited

Arvind Goodkill Sait Manufacturing Peivate Limited

Arvind Envisol Limited

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited Employee Group Gratoity Trust

Suresh Jayaraman, Managing Director
Kannan S., Chief Financial Qfficer
Viray Kumar BS , Company Secretary

Jayesh Shah
Kamal Singal
Samay Lalbha
Nithya Easwaran
Nagesh Pinge

Ultimate Holding Company
Enlerprise having significant influence by Nor executive director

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company

Controlled Fomt Vinture of Holding Ca.

Controlled Joint Venture of Holding Co.

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Enterprise liaving sigaificant influence by Key Managerial Personnel

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Eaterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Petsonnel

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Enterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Personnet

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Entesprise having significant influence by Non executive directors

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Enterprise having significant influence by Non execulive direciers

Trust

Key Managerial Personnel
Key Managerial Personnel
Key Managetial Personnel

Non Executive Director
Naon Exceutive Disector
Non Exccutive Disector
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director

Upto 29/11/2018
Frem 3071142013

Upto 29/1172018
From 311172018

Upta 20/11/2018
From 30/1 1/2018.

Upto 29/11/2018
Frem 30/11/2018

Upto 29/1 112018
From 30/11/2018

Upte 29/11/2018
From 30/11/2018

Note! Related party refationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 32 : Earning per share
Amount in Rs.

Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders (4.20,10,211) (4,09,05,181)

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 9.12,78,723 8,12,78,723

Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS 8,08,88,155 0,81,69,281

For diluted EPS 8,08,88,155 6,81,69,281
Nominal valie of equity shares 10 10
Basic earning per share (0.52) (0.60)
Diluted earning per share (0.52) (0.60)

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 8,08,88,155 6,81,69,281
Effect of dilution: Share options - -
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution $,08.88,155 6,81,69,281




Arving Lifestyle Brands Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Naote 33 : Lease Rent

Operating Lease

(A) Office Premises, Showrooms and other {acility arc taken on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal,
The particulars of these Ieases are as follows

Amount in Rs.

Future Minimum [ease payments obligation en non-cancellable operating leases:

Not fater than one year 20,45,03,101 33,53,15.411
L ater than one year and not later than five years - 15,23,63,050 16,32,18,126
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,74,18,70,057 2,35,4044,618

(B) Equipments are 1aken on operating lease for a period of 5 years with the option of renewal
The particulars of these leases are as follows:

Amount in Rs

Future Minimum lease payments obligation: on non-canceliable operating leases:

Not later than one year 6,40,22,125 6,24 88,474
Later than one year and not later than five years 9,66,81.389 15,55,29.317
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 6,14 43,109 6,30,02,210

(C) Sub-lease income includes reccipt towards office premises, and Sub-lease apreement is for a period of 60 months. Sub-lease income received (or receivable)
recogrized i the Statement of Profit and Loess amounts to Rs Nil {Previous Year Rs. [0,82,064)

Note 34 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} Activities

(a) The Company is required to spend Rs. 22,12,176 (March 31, 2018 - Rg Nil) on CSR Activities

(by Amount spent during the year on Amount in Rs.

(i Comstruction/acquisition of any asset

{ii) On purposes other than {i) above 22.12,176 - 2212176 -




Arvind Lifestyle Broods Limired
Notes lo the Financial Statcnwnta

ries

Note 357 Fair valur dlsclovwes for financial assets wnd fipaocial lia

Se1 ot below is 3 companison. by a3, ol the eanying smotnts aid fur valie uf the Company™s tinancial insiraments. othee than those with c2aying amounts 1hat ane reasonable approtimations of i
vafues: Anmntin Ra.

Fhoatsclal aaxets

Irivestnents measuied ot amized cost 1,500 1,350,000 130,008
Total 1,500t 180,035 1,50,000
Financial fiabilities

Bonewings 5,65,8222.729 5555688976 5658232229
Tofal 5,65,82,22.29 555,56, 04,976 5,65,82,22,210

The management assesaed that the tait valoes of cash and cash cquivalents, vlher bk Lafaness, frad reerivables, offer cument financial assets, ade payables and other curent Geranciat liailities
appeovimate Weir com3ing armunts laigely dut o tre short-term mahuities of these instriments,

Tiw fair value of e financaal asscts and Habliics is induded at the amotint at which the ingtiuneeat tottld be cxclargel 1a & cibyenl tansactjon befliven illing partics, ather Yian in a forced ar
liguidaiivn sale The following mthuds 2ad assorptions were used ta sstimate ihe tair values

The fair value of bozowings and ether Gnanctsd frabifities 1 caleulated by discounting firture cash Gows vang rates cwrently svaitable for debts en sumular terms, eredit nak and renaining maturitres.

The discount fir lack of markelability reprossals the amouats that 4 Compaanry has detervamined that markel panicipants would bk inte sceount whes priding the
smvesiments.

Note 36 ; Far value hirrarchy
The loltowiag table provides the fhir value measurement hivzarchy of the Company's assets and lizbilitics

uantitulive disclosures fair valoe measurement bievarch for financial assets us at March 31,2099 aml Mayek 3L23HE Amoune in B,

As at Murch 3L, 2019
Assels mensured at Tair value
Fafr value through emurtized cost Dvestments
Fovestment March 3%, 2019 130000 130000
Chier financial asscts -derivative March 31, 2019
finaneidl instruments - -

As at March 31, 2018
Assets nueasured at fair valse
Fair value Huough amortized cost investments

Investrent March 3. ZUIR 150,00 - 1,506,000
Onbiet finaneial agscls -denivabive March 31, 2008
linonzial inslruments 30095 30005

disclosurrs fal value mosuremnent

As at Mazch 31, 202%
Liabilities measired st ful
Bortowings Alarch 3L, 2005 365822208 .

As at March 34, 2015
Lialsilitics measured al Fair ¥atue
Bomowings March 31, 2018 5.35.30.88 970 - 553 5088976




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Metes Lo the Financial Starements

Note 37 : Financial instruments 135k management objectives and policies

Tae Company's principal financial lzabilitics, other than derfvatives, comprise barrowings and trade & other payables. The main purpose of these Tinancial liabilities s to finance the Comipany's operations.
and to support Tis sperations. The Company 's principal financial assets include Investments, Loans given, trade and other receivables and cash & short-term deposits that derive dircelly from its operations.

‘The Company's activities expose i 1o markes risk, credit risk and Ziquidity risk. [n order to minimise any adverse effects on the financiat performance of the company, dervalive linancial insiruments, such as
foreign cxchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign eutrency expasitres and intercst rate swaps 1o hedye certain varisble snterest fale expbsures. Derivatives are used exciusively for
hedging purposes and not ns wading / speeulative Instruments,

The Company's risk management is cartied owt by a Treasury department under palicies approved by the Board of directors. Company's treasury idemilies, evaluales and hedges fmancial risks i close co-
operalzon with the Company’s operaling urils. The board provides writien principles for overall risk management, as well as policics covering specilic arcas, such as [orign ¢xchange visk, interext rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instrumeats and non-dervative financial instruments, and investment of exeess Hquidity,

{2} Markes risk
Marketnisk is the sisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instament will ihuctuate becaisse of changes in macket prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate sk, curreney
risk and other price risk. such as commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, rade and other payables and derivative
financial instruments.

Within the various methodologics to analyse and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based an “sensitivity analysis™ on symmetric basis. This wol enables the risk managers to idenlify the risk
position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of {he exposure in the cvent thai certain specificd parameters were to be met under a specific set of assumptions. The risk
cstimales provided here assume:

- a paralicl shall ol 30-basis points of the intcrest rate yield curves in all currencics.

« 2 simultancous, paralicl foreign exchange rates shifl in which the INK apprecialcs / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potenial ceonomic inpact, due to thess assumptions, s based on the cecurrence of adverse / inverse markel conditions and seflects cstimaled changes resulling from the sensiiviy analysis. Actual
resulls that are included in the Statcment of profit & Joss may diflcr materintly from these estimates duc to actual developments in the giobat financial markets,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity. pension and olher post-reliremeni obligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been eade in calenlating the sensilivity analyses:
- The scusitivity of the relevant statement of profit or foss item i the effect ofthe assumcd changes it respective markes risks. This is based on the Bnaneial assets and linancial linbilities feld at March
31,2019 and March 31 2018 meluding the clcel of hedye accounling,

Interest rate risk
Tnterest rate risk arises from the senshivity of financial assels and liabilities to changes in market rates of interest. The Cempany seeks to miligate such risk by entcring into interest rate dervative financial
instrumenls such as inferest rale swaps or gross-currency Hileresl rate swaps. Inferest rale swap agreements arc.tised te adjust the propottion of total debt, that are subject to variable and fixed inerest races.

As at March 31, 2019 approximately 12% of the Company's Barrowings are al fixed rae of interest {March 31.2018- 49 %}
Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demenstrates the sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in inferest rates on that pertion of leans and borrewings afiected. afler the tmpact of hedge accounting. With all other
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floaling rate bomowings. as follows:

Amount i Ks.

March 31,2009 .
Increass in 50 basis poinis (247.85847)
Decrease in 50 basis points 2,47,85,847

March 31, 1618
Increase in 3¢ basis points {1,73,85.755)
Deerease in 50 basis points 1.73,89,756

Exclusivn from (his analysis are as follows:
- Fixed rate Ginmcial instruments measured at cost - Since a change in interest rate would net change the camying anvount of (his category of instruments, theee is no net income finpact and thev are excluded
Tromy this analysis

- The slTeet of interest rate changes on futare cash fews is excloded from Lhis analysis,

Foreign rurrency sk

Foreian currency risk is the risk that the far value or fature cash Tlows of a exposure wit} fluctuate becawse of changes in. forefen exchange rates. The Company transacis bosintss in local citrency and in
lorcign currency, primandy in USD. The Company las obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade payables and roectvables cle. and is, therelore, exposcd to foreign exchange risk. The
Company may wse forsard contracts, forsign exchange options or currency swaps towards hedgng risk resulting Trom changes and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate. These foreipn exchanga
confracts. camied at faiz value, may have varying maturilics vanying depending upon the primary host contract regui and rigk ( stralegy of the company -

The Company mansges its forcign currency risk by hedging appropriate pereentage of ils forcign currency exposure, asapproved by Board as per established sk maagemant policy. Details of the hedge &
unhedged position of the Company given inNote no.28

Fureign ciscrency sensitivity

The following tables demonsirate the sensifivily to a reasonably: possible change in USD, EUR and SEK zalcs to the funclienal currency of respective emtity, with ali other vatables helé constat. The
Company’s ¢xposure 1o foreipn curency changes for all other currencies is not materfal. The impact on the Company’s profit before Lax is duc 16 changes in (he fir value of nongtary assets and lizbilities,
The impact on the Compauy’s pretas cquity is duc to changes in'the fair value of foreim comeney monctary itetos designated as cash Row hedge.



Amount in Rs.

Mlarch 31, 2019 +2% (7745435)
-2% TTASAIS

Aarch 31,2018 +I% (64,15.549)
1% 64,13519

March 35, 2019 ‘ 2% [63)
2% 465

March 3%, 2018 2% {2,71.562)
2% 271562

Amotunl i Rs.

March 31,2019 1% {147,106}
2% 147,106
Maech 31,2018 +2% (14,910}
1% 14,910

The movement in the pre-tax effect is & result of a change in the fair valve of fizancial instrumeats not designated in a hedge relationship. Although the financial instraments have not Leen designated in a
hedge relationship, they-act as an geonomic hedge and will ollset the tnderlying iransactions whes they ocenr.

(%) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk thal n counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrament or customer conteact, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 10 credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily irade receivables) and from its financing activitics, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other Gnancial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer ezredit risk is managed by each business unit subject 1o the Company”s established policy, proecdures and control relating 1o customer ctedit risk nanagement. Trade receivables arc non-intersst
Bearing end are genezally on 30 days to 60 days credit tesm. Credit limits are established for all customers based on intemal ratisg criteria, Quistanding cinstomer zeceivables are regularly monttored and any
shipmenis to major customers are gencrally covered by Ictters of credit. The Company has ne concentration of credit risk as the customer basc is widely distributed both economically and geograptucally.

An‘impoirment analysis is perfonmed a1 each reporting date o an individual basis for major clicnts. In addition, a large aumber of minor réezivables are mrouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impaitment callestively. The caiculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The maximum exposure t credit risk at the reporting daie is the carrying valuc of cach class of financial assets disclosed
in Note 7. The Company does nol hold collateral as sceunitv. Tiie Company evaluales the concentration of risk with respect to trade recenvables as low, as its are tocaled in several jurisdictions md
industries and operate in largely independeni markets

The reguirement of impairment is analysed as each reporiing date. Refer Nole 7 for details on the impairment of zrade receivables.



Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks 2nd financia! institutions is managed by the Company”s treasury depanment in accordance with the Compuny’s palicy. Investments of surplus funds dre made only with
approved. counterparties who meets the minimum tireshold requircments under the counterparty risk asscsament process. The Company monitoss the ratings, credit spreads end Gnancial strength of its
counterpartics. Based on its on-geing asscssment ol ceunterparty sisk, the group adjusts its exposure 1o vadous counlerpaties. The Company’s mmamum gxposure to credil sk for the cempongiits of the
Balance shect as of March 31,2059 and March 31, 2018 is the carrytng amount as diselosed m Note 35.

{¢) Liquidicy sésk
Liqudity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to mecl its present and funire cash and collateral abligations without incurring unaceeplable losses. The Company's objective is Lo, at all times
mainiain oplimum levels of Houidity to meet its cash and coliateral requirements. The Company closely moaitors its tiquidity position and deploys a Tobust cash Svstem, It ins ad
sonrces of financing including biateral loans. debt and overdraft from bath domestic and intemationst banks at an optimised cost, 11 also enjoys strong access to domestic capiial markets across cquity

The 1ablc bl

.Yﬂr ended March 31, 2019

Inlerest bearing borrowings* 4,98,68. 82,169 47,13 40,060
Trade payables RI1,51,51020
Other financizl Habilities# 7530731 H 53,60.37.098
14.65,51,06,372 £,20,73.77.158
Year ended March 31, 2018
[aterest bearing borrowings* 4,75.51,22819 RD,05.66,056
Trade payables 7406912159
(nher financiat Habilities# 141.53,00.556 41,7377, 180
13,57,73,44,634 1,21,7943,236

*lncludes coatractual intcrest payment based on interest raic prevailing at the end of the reporiing period aver the 1enor of the borrowings.
: # Quher financial tiabilities includes interest acerded but not dize of R5.3,70,54,504 (March 31, 2018: 8 60,42 224)

Note 3& : Capital seanagement
For the purpose of the Company’s capita? management, capital inclodes jssned equily capital and all other equity resorves altributable 1o the equity holders of the Company, The primary objeciive of the
Compatty’s capital management is to ensurc that it maintais an elicient capital sirueare arid healthy capital ratios in order 1o suppor( its business and mmamise sharcholdzr value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it i fight of chanyes in economic conditions or its business r quine To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
edpust g dividond paynicnt to sharcholders, scturn capital 1o shareholders or issue new Shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided lsv total capital plns net debt.
The Company includes within ner debt, intesest bearing loans and borowings less cash and shor-term deposits {including other bank balance).

Amount in Rs.

Interest-Bearing loans and borrowings. 5.65.82,22,229 5,55.56,88 976
(Nuic 13)

1.c3s: Cash and Cash equivalent {including ather bank {7,70,26,112) (17,5136,214)
balance and Book Overdrafly

Net debt 558.11,96,117 '5.38,03,52,762
Equity share capital Note |15 U127 872358 81,2787 230
Other equity (Noic 1) 7.50,55.45 590 6.67.55.21.761
Tetal capitat §,41,83,32,820 748,838,991
Capital and net debt 13.99,95,28 937 12,86,88,61,753
Gearing ratio 40% 4294

In order to achicve this vverall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst pther things, aims to easure hat it meets financial covenants atiached to the inferesi-bearing loans and borrewings that
define capital strueture requirements. Breaches in meeting the. financial coverants would permit the bank to immcdiately ca)l foans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the fnancial covenants of
ny inlerest-braring loans and borrawing it the current, period.

Na changes were madz in the objéctives, policics or processes for managing capitat dw ing the year ended March 382019 and year ended March 3 12018

Loan cavenants .
Under the terms of live major borrowing facilities, Uhe Company has complicd with the required financiaf covenants through oul the reporling periods.



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Stateurents

Nate39 ; Share based paynients

Arvind Fashiors Limited, the holding company (AFL) has instituted Employee Stack Ogtion: Scheme 2016 (“ESOI 2016™) and employee stock option scheme 201 8(*ESOP 201 £™)
As o March 31, 2019, AFL has granted 16,87,193 oplions under ESOP 2016 and issuad 3,15,260 options under ESOP 2018 in liew of demerger under the scheme and convertible
into equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs 4 each. )

Expense arising front share based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share- based payment iransactions recagnised in profif or Joss as part of employee benefit expense were as
Amount in Rs,

~48,25,303
48.35,393

Employee option plan
Total employes share based payment expense

Nofe 40 ; Standards jssued bui not yet elTeclive

On 30th March 2019, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is
applicable with effect from 1st-April, 2015,

End AS 116 seis out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentaiion and disclasure of leases for both parties toa contraet i ¢, the lessee and the lessor. Tnd AS 116 introduces

& single lease accounting model for lesses and requires the Jessee Lo Tecegnize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all lsases with a term of move than twelve montks, unless the
underlying asset is low value in nature, Curremly, -operating lease expenses are charged (o the statement of profit and loss. Tnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in Ind AS 17.

As per Ind AS 116, 1he lessee needs to secognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease lizbifities in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by
the lessec under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabitities, The Company is currertly evaluating the impact on secount of implementation of Tod AS 116 which
might have significant impact on key profit & foss and batance sheet ratio i.e. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA}, Asset coverage, debt equity, interest
coverage, eto.

Note 41 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassificd to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements,




